
 
 

8 January 2020 
 
 

Joint Governance Sub-Committee 
 

Date: 
 

16 January 2020 

Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: 
 

Gordon Room, Town Hall, Worthing 

 
 

Committee Membership:  
 
Adur District Council: Councillors David Balfe, Ann Bridges and Andy McGregor  
 
Worthing Borough Council: Councillors Bob Smytherman, Steve Wills and Tim Wills  
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda 
Part A 
 
1. Election of a Chairman   
 
 To elect a Chairman for the duration of the meeting. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest   
 
 Members and officers must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in relation 

to any business on the agenda.  Declarations should also be made at any stage 
such an interest becomes apparent during the meeting.   
 
If in doubt contact the Legal or Democratic Services representative for this 
meeting. 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



3. Procedure for the meeting  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
 To agree the procedure for the meeting, a copy of the proposed procedure is 

attached as item 3. 
 

4. Allegation of a Breach of the Code of Conduct by Councillor Emma Evans  
(Pages 5 - 54) 

 
 
 

To consider a report by the Monitoring Officer, copy attached as item 4. 
 
 

Part B Exempt Reports - Not for Publication 
 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Recording of this meeting  
The Council will be voice recording the meeting, including public question time. The 
recording will be available on the Council’s website as soon as practicable after the 
meeting.  The Council will not be recording any discussions in Part B of the agenda 
(where the press and public have been excluded). 
 

 

For Democratic Services enquiries relating 
to this meeting please contact: 

For Legal Services enquiries relating to 
this meeting please contact: 

Neil terry  
Democratic Services Lead 
01903 221073  
neil.terry@worthing.gov.uk 

Andrew Mathias 
Senior Solicitor 
01903 221032 
andrew.mathias@adur-worthing.gov.uk 

 
 
Duration of the Meeting:  Four hours after the commencement of the meeting the 
Chairperson will adjourn the meeting to consider if it wishes to continue.  A vote will be 
taken and a simple majority in favour will be necessary for the meeting to continue. 
 



 

 

Joint Governance Sub-Committee 
16 January 2020 

Agenda Item 3 

 
 
Joint Governance Sub-Committee – Procedure for Hearing 
  
1. Chairperson to introduce everyone. 
 
2. Chairperson to explain procedure. 
  
3. The Sub-Committee to consider whether the press and public should be excluded 

from all or part of the meeting under s110(4)(b) Local Government Act 1972. Should 
Members wish to exclude the press and public due to exempt information, having 
considered the public interest test, they would need to vote upon such a motion and 
reach a resolution. 

  
4. Monitoring Officer (MO) (or their representative) to outline the facts of the complaint 

and summary of the investigation.  
 
5. Members to ascertain from the Subject Member whether the facts and the allegation 

of a breach of the Code is admitted. If a breach of the Code is admitted, the 
Committee may consider it is not necessary to hear evidence from witnesses and 
move straight to paragraph 21 below. 

 
6. Monitoring Officer to call First Witness; 

● Monitoring Officer to ask questions of First Witness; 
● Subject Member (or representative) to ask any relevant questions of Witness, 

through the Chairperson; 
● Sub-​ ​Committee Members to ask any relevant questions of the Witness. 

 
7. Monitoring Officer to call each other witness for the Council in turn and follow the 

same procedure at paragraph 6 above.  
 
8. Subject Member (or representative) to ask questions of the Monitoring Officer, 

through the Chairperson. 
 
9. Sub-Committee Members to ask questions of the Monitoring Officer. 
 
 

1

Agenda Item 3



10.       Subject Member (or representative) to outline their defence to the allegation that they 
have breached the code of conduct. 

 
11. Subject Member (or representative) to call First Witness; 

● Subject Member (or representative) to ask questions of First Witness 
● Monitoring Officer to ask any relevant questions of Witness, through the 

Chairperson 
● Sub-Committee Members to ask any relevant questions of the Witness.  

 
12. Subject Member (or their representative) to call each other Witness for the Subject 

Member in turn and follow the same procedure at paragraph 11 above. 
 
13. Monitoring Officer to ask questions of the Subject Member 
 
14. Sub-Committee Members to ask questions of the Subject Member. 
  
15. Monitoring Officer to be offered opportunity of final comment. 
 
16. Subject Member (or representative) to be offered opportunity of final comment. 
  
17.      The Sub-Committee, including the Independent Person, shall retire to deliberate with 

the Legal Advisor, upon whether a breach of the code is proven or not. 
 
18. All parties will reconvene and the Independent Person’s views will be sought and will 

be given with the Monitoring Officer, Subject Member and any press and public 
present (unless excluded).  

 
19. All parties will reconvene to take a vote in public, deliver their decision as to whether 

a breach of the code is proven or not proven, and provide reasons. 
 
20. If it is determined that there is no breach of the Code of Conduct, the matter will be 

dismissed, and the meeting closed. 
 
21. If a breach has been determined by the Sub Committee, the Legal Advisor will outline 

the possible sanctions available. 
 
22. The Monitoring Officer has the opportunity to make representations to the 

Sub-Committee relating to mitigating or aggravating features and  appropriate 
sanctions.  

 
23. The Subject Member (or his representative) then has an opportunity to address the 

Sub-Committee on mitigation and sanctions. 
 
24. The Sub-Committee will then retire into private session, with the Legal Advisor and 

the Independent Person, to come to a decision about sanctions.  
 

2



25. All parties will reconvene. The views of the Independent Person (and the Parish 
Representative if appropriate) will be sought and given in the meeting.  

 
26. The decision in respect of sanctions to be imposed, together with reasons, will then 

be announced in the meeting by the Chairperson of the Sub-Committee.  
 
27. The decision of the Sub-Committee will be confirmed in writing within 5 working days.  
 

3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Joint Governance Sub-Committee 
16 January 2020 

Agenda Item 4 

 
Ward(s) Affected: All  

 
 
Allegation of a Breach of the Code of Conduct by Cllr Emma Evans  
 
Report by the Monitoring Officer 
 
Executive Summary 
 

1. Purpose 
 
1.1. To hear and determine a complaint by Mr Geoff Patmore (the 

Complainant) about the conduct of Councillor Emma Evans (the 
Subject Member), which it is alleged was in breach of the Adur 
District Council Code of Conduct for Members. 
 

1.2. Having heard and determined the matter, to either dismiss the 
complaint if no breach is found by the Sub-Committee, or if a breach 
is upheld, to hear any representations as to mitigation and consider 
any further action that should be taken, or sanction imposed, upon 
the Subject Member.  
 

 
 

2. Recommendations 
 
2.1. The Joint Governance Sub-Committee is recommended to determine 

the complaint that Cllr Evans has breached the Adur District Council 
Code of Conduct and resolve either that a breach is proven or not 
proven. 

Joint Governance Sub-Committee 
16 January 2020 5

Agenda Item 4



2.2. Should the Joint Governance Sub-Committee determine that Cllr 
Evans has breached the Adur District Council Code of Conduct, they 
are recommended to determine any further action that should be 
taken, including any sanction to be imposed. 
  

 
 

3. Context 
 
3.1 Adur District Council has a Code of Conduct for Members, in compliance with 

its statutory obligations. The Code of Conduct was adopted on 1st May 2015 
and is reproduced at Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
3.2 The Code of Conduct is engaged and applies to all Members of Adur District 

Council when they are conducting the business of Adur District Council, acting 
in their official capacity as a Member of Adur District Council or acting, 
claiming to act, or giving the impression they are acting as a representative of 
the Council.  

 
3.3 Relevant provisions of the Code include the following: 
 

A Member must: 
 

4.2.1 (a) Treat others with respect 
 
4.2.1 (b) Not conduct themselves in a manner which is contrary to the 

Council’s duty to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct of Members. 

 
3.4 On 24th June 2019 the Council’s Monitoring Officer (MO), received a formal 

complaint from Lancing Parish Councillor, Geoff Patmore, (the Complainant), 
alleging that Cllr Evans (the Subject Member) had breached the Adur District 
Council Code of Conduct for Members.  

 
3.5 In summary, Cllr Patmore’s complaint was that Cllr Evans had called him a 

“tosser” on social media on 10th June 2019 and in doing so had shown a lack 
of respect towards him.  

 
3.6 The MO carried out an initial assessment of the complaint in accordance with 

the Council’s Standards Procedure Rules, which are produced at Appendix 2 
to this report. She considered whether Cllr Evans was acting in her capacity 

Joint Governance Sub-Committee 
16 January 2020 6



as a Councillor at the time of the alleged misconduct, or giving the impression 
or holding herself out as so acting. The MO found that Cllr Evans was, as she 
directly responded to a post referring to her as a “Cabinet Member”, and the 
content of the posts was about her work within her remit as an Adur District 
Council Executive Member and that therefore the Code was engaged at the 
material time.  

 
3.7 The MO further considered whether, if proven, the conduct would amount to a 

breach of the Code and found that it would.  
 

3.8 The MO determined the assessment stage by concluding that it would be 
suitable for an attempt at informal resolution. The MO therefore asked Cllr 
Evans to provide a formal written apology to Mr Patmore, but she declined to 
do so. 
 

3.9 This left the MO with no option other than to refer the complaint for an 
investigation.  

 
3.10 In reaching this determination of assessment of the complaint, consultation 

took place with Mr Simon Norris-Jones, the Council’s Independent Person, 
who agreed with the determination. 

 
3.11 The MO appointed Ms Louise Mathie, Deputy MO and Senior Lawyer as 

Investigating Officer, to undertake an investigation into the complaint, and to 
produce an Investigator’s report summarising her findings and making 
recommendations. The Investigator’s report is produced at Appendix 3 to this 
report.  

 
3.12 A screenshot of the relevant social media posts are reproduced as Appendix 1 

to the Investigator’s report.  
  
3.13 Cllr Evans, the Subject Member, has submitted three witness statements on 

her behalf, from Councillors Parkin, Loader and Albury.  These witness 
statements are attached as Appendix 4. 

 
 

4. Issues for Consideration 
 
4.1 The Sub-Committee is required to hear the evidence (both verbal at the 

hearing and any written evidence submitted in advance) from both the Subject 
Member (and/or his representative) and the Monitoring Officer, and any 
witnesses that may be called by either party.  

Joint Governance Sub-Committee 
16 January 2020 7



 
4.2 If the Subject Member were to admit the breach of the Code of Conduct to the 

Sub-Committee, they may consider that this would negate the need to hear 
the evidence and the Committee may wish to move straight to considering 
mitigation and potential sanctions. The Sub-Committee is therefore 
recommended to deduce at the outset whether the breach is admitted by Cllr 
Evans or not. 

 
4.3 The Sub-Committee is required to determine whether the allegation of breach 

of the Code by Cllr Evans is proven, or not, on the balance of probability. 
 
4.4 Should the Sub-Committee determine that the complaint of breach of the 

Code of Conduct by Cllr Evans is not proven, they are required to dismiss the 
complaint. 

 
4.5 Should the Sub-Committee determine that Cllr Evans has breached the Code 

of Conduct, they are required to determine whether any action in relation to 
the breach should be taken, and if appropriate, determine any sanctions that 
should be imposed upon the Subject Member. 

 
4.6 Any sanctions imposed must be reasonable and proportionate to the 

circumstances of the matter.  Action that could be taken or sanctions that 
could be imposed by the Sub-Committee, should they find a breach of the 
Code of Conduct, include:- 

 
● Determining to take no action 
● Censure or issuing a formal reprimand 
● Publication of the Decision 
● Recommendation by the Joint Governance Sub-Committee to the 

Group Leader or the Council that the Subject Member be removed from 
a Committee 

● Recommendation by the Joint Governance Sub-Committee to the 
Group Leader or the Council that the Subject Member be removed from 
an outside body appointment 

● Withdrawal of facilities 
● Recommendation that the Subject Member provide a formal written 

apology. 
● Recommendation that the Subject Member undertake training. 

 
 
 
 

Joint Governance Sub-Committee 
16 January 2020 8



5. Engagement and Communication 
 
5.1 Consultation has taken place with the Council’s Independent Person at the 

assessment stage of the complaint. 
 
5.2 The Joint Governance Sub-Committee are further required to seek, and take 

account of, the views of the Independent Person in making their determination 
of this complaint. 

 
6. Financial Implications 

 
6.1 There are no specific financial implications arising out of the recommendations 

in this report. 
 

7. Legal Implications 
 
7.1 The Localism Act 2011 introduced new processes for maintaining good 

standards of conduct and ethics in local government. 
 
7.2 Section 27 Localism Act 2011 places local authorities under a duty to promote 

and maintain high standards of conduct.  
 
7.3 Section 27 Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to adopt a Code of 

Conduct. Adur District Council has adopted a Code of Conduct which forms 
part of its Constitution and is reproduced as Appendix 1 to this report.  

 
7.4 Section 28 Localism Act 2011 requires that local authorities have in place 

arrangements for investigating allegations of breaches of the Code. Adur & 
Worthing Councils have adopted Standards Procedure Rules which govern 
the procedure for investigating such allegations; they form part of each 
Council’s Constitution and are attached as Appendix 2 to this report. 

 
7.5 Section 28 (7) provides that a local authority’s arrangements must include the 

appointment of at least one Independent Person whose views must be 
sought, and taken into account, by the authority before it makes its decision 
on an allegation that it has decided to investigate. The Joint Governance 
Sub-Committee is therefore statutorily obliged to take account of the views of 
the Independent Person present at the hearing. 

 
7.6 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Meeting and Access to 

Information)(England) Regulations 2012 provide some circumstances where 
information may be deemed to be exempt, and therefore potentially not 

Joint Governance Sub-Committee 
16 January 2020 9



disclosed to the public, subject to the public interest test. Consequently, some 
information in the appendices to the report may have been redacted where it 
contains exempt information, which is not material nor relevant to the 
Committee’s decision. 

 
 
Background Papers 
 

● Adur District Council Constitution 
● Localism Act 2011 

 
 
Officer Contact Details:-  
 
Susan Sale 
Solicitor to the Council & Monitoring Officer 
01903 221119 
susan.sale@adur-worthing.gov.uk  
 
  

Joint Governance Sub-Committee 
16 January 2020 10

mailto:susan.sale@adur-worthing.gov.uk


Sustainability & Risk Assessment 
 

 
1. Economic 
 

Matter considered and no issues identified. 
 
2. Social 
 
2.1 Social Value 

 
Matter considered and no issues identified. 

 
2.2 Equality Issues 

 
Matter considered and no issues identified. 

 
2.3 Community Safety Issues (Section 17) 

 
Matter considered and no issues identified. 

 
2.4 Human Rights Issues 

 
The Subject Member has the right to a fair hearing before the Standards             
Sub-Committee. The hearing will be conducted in accordance with the          
principles of natural justice. 

 
3. Environmental 

 
Matter considered and no issues identified. 

 
4. Governance 

 
The meeting of the Sub-Committee of the Joint Governance Committee will           
be held in accordance with the Councils’ constitutional and governance          
arrangements. 

Joint Governance Sub-Committee 
16 January 2020 11



12



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 1 

____________________________________ 
 

THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 
___________________________________ 

 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This Code applies to every Member of Adur District Council and every 

Member of Worthing Borough Council, when that Member acts in their role as 
a Member. It is each Member’s responsibility to comply with the provisions of 
this Code. 

 
1.2 Each Member is a representative of Adur District Council or Worthing Borough 

Council and the public will view that Member as such, and therefore, a 
Member’s actions impact upon the Council as a whole and its reputation; a 
Member’s actions can have both positive and negative impacts on the 
Councils. 

 
1.3 This Code of Conduct is based upon the ‘Nolan Principles - The Seven 

Principles of Public Life’, which are set out at paragraph 2.0, and also 
encompasses the legislative framework of the Localism Act 2011, where 
provision is made by the Secretary of State for criminal sanctions to apply in 
certain circumstances.   

 
 
2.0  THE NOLAN PRINCIPLES: SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE 
 

2.1 Selflessness: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public 

interest.  They should not do so in order to gain financial or other benefits for 
themselves, their family or their friends. 

 

2.2 Integrity:  Holders of public office should not place themselves under any 

financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might 
seek to influence them in the performance of their official duties. 

 

2.3 Objectivity:  In carrying out public business, including making public 

appointments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards 
and benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit. 

 

2.4 Accountability:  Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions 

and actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is 
appropriate to their office. 

 

2.5 Openness:  Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all 

the decisions and actions that they take.  They should give reasons for their 
decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly 
demands it. 

13

tcourt
Text Box
APPENDIX 1




 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 2 

 

2.6 Honesty:  Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests 

relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any conflicts arising 
in a way that protects the public interest. 

 

2.7 Leadership:  Holders of public office should promote and support these 

principles by leadership and example. 
 
 
3.0 INTERPRETATION 
 

In this Code -  
 
3.1 ‘Meeting’ means any meeting of: 
 

 The Full Council; 

 The Executive of the Council; 

 Any Committee, Sub-Committee, Joint Committee of the Council; and 

 Any other meeting involving Members and/or Officers and/or the public, 
 

whether or not the press and public are excluded from the meeting in question 
by virtue of a resolution of Members. 

 
3.2 ‘Member’ includes a Co-opted Member (voting and non-voting), an Elected 

Member and an appointed Member. 
 
 
4.0 SCOPE AND GENERAL OBLIGATIONS 
 
4.1 Scope 
 
4.1.1 This Code applies to all Members of Adur District Council and all Members of 

Worthing Borough Council. 
 
4.1.2 It is each individual Member’s responsibility to comply with the provisions of 

this Code. 
 
4.1.3 The Code applies whenever a Member: 
 

 Conducts the business of Adur District Council or Worthing Borough 
Council; or 

 

 Acts, claims to act, or gives the impression they are acting, as a 
representative of Adur District Council or Worthing Borough Council, or 
in their official capacity as a Member of Adur District Council or 
Worthing Borough Council. 

 
4.1.4 Where a Member acts as a representative of Adur District Council or Worthing 

Borough Council: 
 

14



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 3 

 on any other body, they must, when acting for that other body, comply 
with Adur District Council or Worthing Borough Council’s Code of 
Conduct, except and insofar as it conflicts with any other lawful 
obligations to which that other body may be subject. 

 
4.2 General Obligations 
 
4.2.1 When acting as a Member of Adur District Council or Worthing Borough 

Council a Member must: 
 

(a) Treat others with respect; 
 
(b) Not conduct themselves in a manner which is contrary to the Council’s 

duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct of Members; 
 
(c) Ensure that they are aware of and comply with the requirements that 

the Bribery Act 2010 places on a Member and on the Council as a 
whole; 

 
(d) Not disclose the information given to them in confidence by anyone, or 

information acquired by them which they believe, or ought reasonably 
to be aware, is of a confidential nature, except where: 

 
(i) they have the consent of a person authorised to give it; 
(ii) they are required by law to do so; 
(iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 

obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third party 
agrees not to disclose the information to any other person; or 

(iv) the disclosure is: 
(aa) reasonable and in the public interest; and 
(bb) made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable 

requirements of the Council; and 
(cc) they have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its 

release; 
 
(e) Not prevent another person from gaining access to information to which 

that person is entitled by law; 
 
(f) Not conduct themselves in a manner which is contrary to the Council’s 

duty under the equalities legislation. 
 
4.2.2 When using, or authorising the use by others, of the resources of Adur District 

Council or Worthing Borough Council, a Member must: 
 

(a) Act in accordance with the Council’s reasonable requirements, 
procedures, policy and Constitution, including the requirements of the 
Council’s Internet and Email Policy; 

 
(b) Make sure that such resources are not used improperly for political 

purposes (including party political purposes); and 

15



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 4 

 
(c) Have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity made 

under the Local Government Act 1986, and the Protocol on the Pre-
Election period. 

 
 

5.0 DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT 
2011 

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI’s) and their application are governed by 
the Localism Act 2011. 

 
5.1 Notification of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
5.1.1 Within 28 days of becoming a Member, each Member must notify the 

Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary interests they may have. 
 
5.1.2 A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of a Member or their partner 

(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners) within the description at Appendix 1 of this Code of Conduct. 

 
 
5.2 Register of Interests 
 
5.2.1 Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the Register 

of Interests.  A copy of the Register will be available for public inspection and 
will be published on the Councils’ website. 

 
5.3 Sensitive Interests 
 
5.3.1 Where a Member considers that disclosure of the details of a disclosable 

pecuniary interest on a copy of the Register made available for inspection and 
published, could lead to them, or a person connected with them, being subject 
to violence or intimidation, then copies of the Register that are available for 
inspection and any published version of the Register will exclude details of the 
interest, but state that the Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest, the 
details of which are withheld under Section 32(2) of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
5.4 Non-Participation in Case of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 
5.4.1 If a Member is present at a meeting of Adur District Council or Worthing 

Borough Council or any Committee, Sub-Committee or Joint Committee of the 
Council and has a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter to be 
considered or being considered at the meeting: 

 
(a) That Member may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the 

meeting; and 
 

16



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 5 

(b) That Member may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the 
meeting; and 

 
(c) If the interest is not registered, the Member must disclose the interest in 

the meeting; and 
 
(d) If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending 

notification, the Member must notify the Monitoring Officer of the 
interest within 28 days of the meeting. 

 
5.4.2 In addition, the Member is required to leave the room where the meeting is 

held while any discussion or voting takes place. 
 
5.4.3 Where an Executive Member may discharge a function alone and becomes 

aware of a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter being dealt with or to be 
dealt with by him/her, the Executive Member must: 

 
(a) Notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest; and 
 
(b) Not take any steps or further steps in the matter. 
 

5.4.4 Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary interest in any business of the 
Councils, they may attend that meeting but only for the purpose of making 
representations, answering questions or giving evidence relating to the 
business, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for 
the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise, and the 
Member leaves the room where the meeting is held immediately after making 
representations, answering questions or giving evidence, prior to any debate, 
discussion or vote on the matter. 

 
5.5 Dispensations 
 
5.5.1 The Monitoring Officer may grant a Member a dispensation, but only in limited 

circumstances, to enable them to participate and vote on a matter in which 
they have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

 
5.6 Offences 
 
5.6.1 It is a criminal offence to: 
 

(a) Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary 
interests within 28 days of a Member’s election; 

 
(b) Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is not 

on the register; 
 
(c) Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable 

pecuniary interest that is not on the Register that they have disclosed to 
a meeting; 

 

17



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 6 

(d) Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which a Member 
has a disclosable pecuniary interest; 

 
(e) As an Executive Member discharging a function acting alone, and 

having a disclosable pecuniary interest in such a matter, failing to notify 
the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of the interest; and 

 
(f) Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or misleading 

in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable pecuniary interest or 
in disclosing such interest to a meeting. 

 
5.6.2 The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine not exceeding 

level 5 on the standard scale (£5,000) and disqualification from being a 
Councillor for up to 5 years. 

 
 
6.0 OTHER INTERESTS: PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY 
 
6.1 Notification of Other Interests 
 
6.1.1 In addition to the disclosable pecuniary interests notifiable under the Localism 

Act 2011 as set out in Paragraph 5 above, a Member must, within 28 days of: 
 

(a) this Code being adopted by or applied to your Council; or 
 
(b) that Member’s election or appointment to office (where that is later), 
 
notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of the details of their other personal and 
pecuniary interests where they fall within the following descriptions, for 
inclusion in the Register of Interests. 

 
6.1.2 A Member must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest or 

change of any interest, notify the Monitoring Officer of the details of that new 
interest or change. 

 
6.2 Personal Interests 
 
 
6.2.1 A Member has a personal interest in any business of the Council where that 

business: 
 

(a) relates to, or is likely to affect, any body of which they are a Member or 
in a position of general control or management and to which they are 
appointed or nominated by the Council; 

 
(b) relates to, or is likely to affect, any body: 
 

(i) exercising functions of a public nature; 
(ii) directed to charitable purposes; or 

18



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 7 

(iii) one of whose principle purposes includes the influence of public 
opinion or policy (including any political party or trade union) of 
which they are a member or in a position of general control or 
management. 

 
6.2.2 A Member also has a personal interest in any business of the Council where a 

decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
their wellbeing or financial position or the wellbeing or financial position of a 
relevant person to a greater extent than the majority of other council tax 
payers, rate payers or inhabitants of the Ward affected by the decision. 

 
6.2.3 A relevant person is: 
 

(a) A member of their family or any person with whom they have a close 
association; or 

 
(b) Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons 

defined in paragraph 6.2.3(a) above, any firm in which such persons 
are a partner, or any company of which they are directors; 

 
(c) Any person or body in whom such persons defined in paragraph 

6.2.3(a) above, have a beneficial interest in a class of securities 
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000 or 1% of the total of that class 
of securities. 

 
6.3 Pecuniary Interests 
 
6.3.1 Where a Member has a personal interest in any business of your Council, they 

also have a pecuniary interest in that business where the interest is one which 
a member of the public, with knowledge of the relevant facts, would 
reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the Member’s 
judgement of the public interest and where that business: 

 
(a) affects the Member’s financial position or the financial position of a 

person or body described in paragraph 6.2.2 above; or 
 
(b) relates to the determining of any approval, consent, licence, permission 

or registration in relation to them or any person or body described in 
paragraph 6.2.2 above. 

 
6.4 Disclosure and Non-Participation 
 
6.4.1 Where a Member has a personal interest described in paragraph 6.2 above, 

which relates to themselves, in any business of the Council and where they 
are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the existence of the personal 
interest and they attend a meeting of the Council at which the business is 
considered, they must disclose to that meeting the existence and nature of 
that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the interest 
becomes apparent. 

 

19



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 8 

6.4.2 Where a Member has a personal interest in any business of their Authority 
which relates to or is likely to affect a relevant person as described in 
paragraph 6.2.2, they need only disclose to the meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest when they address the meeting on that business. 

 
6.4.3 Where a Member has a personal interest, but by virtue of paragraph 6.6, 

sensitive information relating to it is not registered in their Council’s Register of 
Members’ Interests, they must indicate to the meeting that they have a 
personal interest, but need not disclose the sensitive information to the 
meeting. 

 
6.4.4 Where a Member has a personal interest in any business of their Council and 

they have made an Executive Decision in relation to that business, they must 
ensure that any written statement of that decision records the existence and 
nature of that interest. 

 
6.4.5 Subject to paragraphs 6.4.7 and 6.4.8 below, where a Member has a 

pecuniary interest in any business of the Council: 
 

(a) they may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting; 
 
(b) they may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting; 
 
(c) if the interest is not registered, they must disclose the interest at the 

meeting; and 
 
(d) if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending 

notification, they must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 
28 days. 

 
6.4.6 In addition, they are to leave the room where the meeting is held while any 

discussion or voting takes place. 
 
6.4.7 Where a Member has a pecuniary interest in any business of the Authority, 

they may attend a meeting, but only for the purpose of making 
representations, answering questions or giving evidence relating to the 
business, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the meeting for 
the same purpose, whether under statutory right or otherwise, and they leave 
the room where the meeting is held immediately after making representations, 
answering questions and/or giving evidence. 

 
6.4.8 Subject to a Member disclosing the interests at the meeting, they may attend a 

meeting and vote on a matter where they have a pecuniary interest that 
relates to the functions of the Council in respect of: 

 
(a) Housing, where they are a tenant of your Council, provided that those 

functions do not relate particularly to their tenancy or lease; 
 

20



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 9 

(b) Statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security Contributions 
and Benefits Act 1992, where they are in receipt of, or are entitled to, 
the receipt of such pay; 

 
(c) An allowance, payment or indemnity given to Members; 
 
(d) Any ceremonial honour given to Members; and 
 
(e) Setting Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance 

Act 1972. 
 

6.4.9 Where an Executive Member may discharge a function alone and they 
become aware of a pecuniary interest in a matter being dealt with, or to be 
dealt with, by them, they must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and 
they must not take any steps or further steps in the matter, or seek improperly 
to influence a decision about the matter. 

 
6.5 Register of Interests 
 
6.5.1 Any other interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the 

Register of Interests.  A copy of the Register will be available for public 
inspection and will be published on the Council’s website. 

 
6.6 Sensitive Interests 
 
6.6.1 Where a Member considers that disclosure of the details of a personal or 

disclosable pecuniary interest on a copy of the Register made available for 
inspection and published, could lead to them, or a person connected with 
them, being subject to violence or intimidation, then copies of the Register that 
are available for inspection and any published version of the Register will 
exclude details of the interest, but state that the Member has a personal or 
disclosable pecuniary interest, the details of which are withheld under Section 
32(2) of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
6.7 Interest arising in relation to Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 
6.7.1 In any business before an Overview and Scrutiny Committee or Joint 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee (or of a Sub-Committee or Panel of such a 
Committee), where: 

 
(a) that business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) 

or action taken by the Executive or another of the Council’s 
Committees, Sub-Committees or Joint Committees; and 

 
(b) at the time the decision was made or action was taken, a Member was 

a Member of the Executive, Committee, Sub-Committee or Joint 
Committee mentioned in paragraph (a) and was present when that 
decision was made or action was taken, 

 

21



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 10 

that Member may only attend a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee or Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the purpose of 
answering questions or giving evidence relating to the business, and must 
leave the room where the meeting is held immediately after making 
representations, answering questions or giving evidence. 
 

6.8 Pre-determination or Bias 
 
6.8.1 Where a Member has been involved in campaigning in their political role on an 

issue which does not impact on their personal and/or professional life, they 
should not be prohibited from participating in a decision in their political role as 
a Member.  However, they must not place themselves under any financial or 
other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might seek to 
influence them in the performance of their official duties. 

 
6.8.2 When making a decision, a Member should consider the matter with an open 

mind and on the facts before the meeting at which the decision is to be taken. 
 
6.9 Compliance with Constitution, Rules, Standards and Guidance 
 
6.9.1 Failure to comply with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution or any 

rule, protocol, corporate standards or guidance issued pursuant to this 
Constitution shall be deemed to be a breach of this Code. 

 
 
7.0 REGISTRATION OF GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY 
 
7.1 To preserve public confidence, Members are strongly encouraged not to 

accept any gifts from customers or contractors.  It may constitute a serious 
criminal offence for a Member to corruptly receive or give any gift, loan, fee, 
reward or advantage for doing, or not doing, anything, or showing favour or 
disfavour to any person, in their official capacity. 

 
7.2 If a Member does accept any gift, of any value, they must comply with the 

Council’s requirements to register or declare interests.  If a Member does 
accept any hospitality, or other benefit, by virtue of being a Member, they must 
comply with the Council’s requirements to register such hospitality, regardless 
of value.  Any such gift or hospitality received much be registered within 28 
days of receipt.  Such declaration and registration should be made to the 
Director for Communities for inclusion in the register held by Democratic 
Services Officers. 

 
7.3 It is good practice for a Member to declare any offers of gifts, hospitality or 

other benefit, received, even if not accepted. 
 
 

22



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 11 

Appendix 1 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests under the Localism Act 
2011 

 
 

Interests Description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the relevant Council) made 
or provided within the relevant period in respect of 
any expenses incurred by M in carrying out duties as 
a Member, or towards the election expenses of M.  
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union 
and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant 
person (or a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest) and the relevant Council: 
 
(a) Under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and 
 
(b) Which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area 
of the relevant Council. 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy 
land in the area of the relevant Council for a month or 
longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge): 
 
(a) The landlord is the relevant Council; and 
 
(b) The tenant is a body in which the relevant 

person has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 
 
(a) That body (to M’s knowledge) has a place of 

business or land in the area of the relevant 
Council; and 

 
(b) Either: 
 

(i) The total nominal value of the securities 
exceeds £25,000 or 100th of the total issued 
share capital of that body; or 

 
(ii) If the share capital of that body is of more 

23



 

 District Council of Adur – Code of Conduct for Members – 01/05/2015 – SCS102-419315 

 
 Part 5, Section 1 – Page 12 

than one class, the total nominal value of the 
shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds 
100th of the total issue share capital of that 
class. 

 
 
 
These descriptions on interests are subject to the following definitions: 
 
(a) ‘Body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest’: means a firm in 

which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the 
relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person 
has a beneficial interest; 

 
(b) ‘Director’: includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial 

and provident society; 
 
(c) ‘Land’: includes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which 

does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with 
another) to occupy the land or to receive income; 

 
(d) ‘M’: means the Member; 
 
(e) ‘Member’: includes a Co-opted Member; 
 
(f) ‘Relevant Council’: means the Council of which M is a Member; 
 
(g) ‘Relevant Period’: means the period of 12 months ending with the day on 

which M gives a notification for the purposes of Section 30(1) of the Localism 
Act 2011; 

 
(h) ‘Relevant Person’: means M or any other person referred to in Section 

30(3)(b) of the Localism Act 2011; and 
 
(i) ‘Securities’: means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loans, bonds, units 

of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services 
and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than 
money deposited with a Building Society. 

 

24



 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 1 

 
 

STANDARDS PROCEDURE RULES 
 
 

 
 

 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 It is expected that Elected and Co-opted Members of the Borough, District and 

Parish Councils will uphold the highest standards of conduct expected of 
holders of public office.  However, in the event that there is a complaint, it is 
important that this is handled effectively to ensure public confidence is 
maintained. 

 
1.2 Section 28(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Councils to put in 

place ‘arrangements’ under which allegations that a Member or Co-opted 
Member of the Borough,  District or Parish Council has failed to comply with 
the relevant Authority’s Code of Member Conduct when they are acting in that 
capacity: 

 
(a) can be investigated; and 
(b) decisions made on such allegations. 

 
1.3 These ‘arrangements’ must provide for the Authority to appoint at least one 

Independent Person whose views: 
 

(a) must be sought, and taken into account by the Authority before it takes 
a decision on an allegation which it has decided shall be investigated, 
(i.e. at the assessment stage); 

(b) may be sought by the Authority at any other stage, including the 
Committee or Sub-Committee hearing the matter; and 

(c) may be sought by a Member or Co-opted Member of the 
Borough/District/Parish Council if that person’s behaviour is the subject 
of an allegation (i.e. by the Subject Member). 

 
1.4 The purpose of these arrangements is to comply with the requirements of the 

Localism Act 2011 in relation to complaints about an Elected or Co-opted 
Member of Adur District Council / Worthing Borough Council / Sompting 
Parish Council or Lancing Parish Council and what happens if someone 
makes a complaint. 

 
 

25

tcourt_1
Text Box
APPENDIX 2




 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 2 

2.0 INTERPRETATION 
 
2.1 ‘Subject Member’ means the Elected or Co-opted Member of the Authority 

who is the subject of the allegation made by the complainant, unless otherwise 
stated. 

 
2.2 ‘Complainant’ means the person who has submitted the complaint. 
 
2.3 ‘Investigating Officer’ means the person appointed by the Monitoring Officer to 

undertake an investigation and may include the Monitoring Officer and/or his 
or her Deputy or representative. 

 
2.4 ‘The matter’ is the subject matter of the allegation. 
 
2.5 ‘The Standards Sub-Committee’ refers to the Sub-Committee of the Joint 

Governance Committee, to which it has delegated the conduct of the hearing. 
It comprises of an equal number of Elected Members from Worthing Borough 
Council and from Adur District Council.  

 
2.6 ‘Independent Person’ means a person appointed by the Councils under the 

Localism Act 2011, Sections 28(1) to advise the Joint Governance Committee 
and its Sub-Committee and who has the functions set out in the Localism Act 
Section 28(7). 

 
2.7 ‘Parish Representative’ means a Parish Councillor appointed by the Council to 

advise the Joint Governance Committee and its Sub-Committee in relation to 
cases involving Parish Councillors.  A Parish Representative will not give 
advice or sit in relation to a complaint about the conduct of a Parish Councillor 
of their own Authority. 

 
2.8 ‘Monitoring Officer’ means a statutory officer appointed by the Councils under 

the Local Government and Housing Act, Sections 5 and 5A, who has a role in 
the promotion and maintenance of high standards of conduct within Local 
Authorities and includes his or her deputy or representative. 

  
 
3.0 COMPLAINTS IN WRITING 
 
3.1 A complaint must be in writing and must allege a breach by the Member or 

Co-opted Member, of the relevant Council’s Code of Conduct for Members, 
when the Member was acting in his/her capacity as a Councillor. The 
Monitoring Officer will be permitted to seek additional information from the 
complainant  and/or the Subject Member. 

 
3.2 A complaint should be made on the official complaint form, which can be 

found on the Councils’ website. 
 
3.3 A complaint must relate to an individual who was a Member or Co-opted 

Member of the Council at the time of the matter complained of. The Monitoring 
Officer cannot deal with complaints about the Borough, District or Parish 

26



 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 3 

generally, or their staff or services; the Council’s complaints procedure should 
be used for such issues. The Monitoring Officer cannot deal with complaints 
about an individual’s conduct before he or she was Elected, Co-opted or 
appointed, nor after he or she ceased to be a Member.  

 
 
4.0 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND NOTIFICATION 
 
4.1 Within seven working days of receipt of the complaint, the Monitoring Officer 

will acknowledge receipt of the complaint and notify the Subject  Member as to 
the existence of the complaint, the name of the complainant (unless it is not in 
the public interest to do so) and provide them with a copy of the complaint. 

 
4.2 It is likely that the Monitoring Officer will also notify the Subject Member’s 

Group Leader and the Councils’ Chief Executive of the complaint and a 
summary of it. 

 
 
5.0 ASSESSMENT OF COMPLAINTS 
 
5.1 The Monitoring Officer has initial responsibility for considering written 

complaints by way of allegations against Members for breach of the relevant 
Code of Members’ Conduct.  This is known as assessment.  The purpose of 
assessment is to determine whether or not, on the basis of information 
supplied by the Complainant, if the matter were proved, it would amount to a 
breach of the Code of Members’ Conduct.  No investigation or hearings are 
conducted at this stage. 

 
5.2 The Monitoring Officer will consult with one of the Independent Persons on 

each complaint received, as to whether in their view it could amount to a 
breach of the Code of Conduct.  The Parish Representative will also be 
consulted in relation to complaints concerning Parish Councillors, and their 
views will be sought as to whether the complaint merits formal investigation.  
Their views will be included in the Monitoring Officer’s decision report. 

 
5.3 If the Monitoring Officer requires further information in order to reach a 

decision, they may come back to the complainant for such information and 
may also request information from the Subject Member.   

 
5.4 If the Subject Member was not acting in their capacity as a Member at the time 

of the matter complained of, or if the complaint does not disclose a potential 
breach of the Code of Members’ Conduct, then the complaint will be rejected. 

 
5.5 Complaints which in the opinion of the Monitoring Officer are trivial, simply 

malicious, vexatious, politically motivated or tit-for-tat are also likely to be 
rejected.   

 
5.6 If the complaint does disclose a possible breach of the Code of Members’ 

Conduct and has not been rejected under paragraphs 5.4 or 5.5 above, the 
Monitoring Officer will consider whether or not the complaint can be more 

27



 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 4 

appropriately dealt with by way of informal resolution. If satisfied that this is the 
appropriate way forward then the Monitoring Officer will contact the 
complainant and the Subject Member and seek to arrive at an informal 
resolution of the complaint. Such informal resolution may involve the Member 
accepting that his or her conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology or 
other remedial action.  Where the Subject Member makes a reasonable offer 
of local resolution but the complainant is not willing to accept the offer, the 
Monitoring Officer will take account of this in deciding whether the complaint 
merits formal investigation.  

 
5.7 If the complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulations by 

any person, the Monitoring Officer has the power to call in the Police and other 
regulatory agencies. If the complaint identifies a safeguarding issue the 
Monitoring Officer has the power to refer it to other appropriate agencies. 

 
 
6.0 HOW THE MONITORING OFFICER ASSESSES THE COMPLAINT 
 
6.1 In reaching a decision on the complaint, the Monitoring Officer will take into 

account the following considerations, depending on the nature of the 
complaint and the need to adopt a proportionate response: 

 
(a) The extent to which the Subject Member is alleged to have failed to 

treat others with respect; 
(b) The extent to which the Subject Member is alleged to have acted in a 

way that may cause the Authority to breach an equality enactment; 
(c) Whether the allegation relates to bullying, intimidating or attempting to 

intimidate a person involved in an allegation against a Member; 
(d) Whether in disclosing confidential information, the Subject Member 

failed to take on or heed advice; 
(e) The implications for public perception on the reputation of the Council; 
(f) The implication for staff relations; 
(g) The seniority or position of influence of the Member and public trust and 

confidence; 
(h) The consequences, or the likely consequences, of the Member’s 

alleged actions; 
(i) The extent to which the Subject Member is alleged to have used his or 

her position as a Member improperly to confer or secure an advantage 
or disadvantage; 

(j) The extent to which the Subject Member is alleged to have misused or 
abused the resources of the Council; 

(k) The detriment caused by acting against advice when reaching 
decisions; 

(l) The extent to which a failure to register or declare interests results from 
a failure or refusal to seek or to follow advice; 

(m) Whether the matter of complaint has already been the subject of a 
previous investigation, or an investigation by another regulator, e.g. the 
Local Government Ombudsman or the District Auditor or the subject of 
proceedings in Court; 

28



 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 5 

(n) Whether the complaint is about something that happened so long ago 
that there would be little public benefit in taking action now; 

(o) Whether the complaint is too trivial to warrant further action; 
(p) Whether the complaint appears to be simply malicious, vexatious, 

politically motivated or tit-for-tat; 
(q) The public benefit in directing an investigation or other steps and the 

costs and Officer and Member time which could be incurred on an 
investigation or other steps; 

(s) Whether there is enough information currently available to justify a 
decision to refer the matter for investigation or to seek an informal 
resolution; 

(t) Whether the complaint is about someone who has died, resigned, is 
seriously ill or is no longer a Member of the Council concerned and it is 
not in the public interest to pursue; 

(u) Whether the complaint is such that it is unlikely that an investigation will 
come to a firm conclusion on the matter and where independent 
evidence is likely to be difficult or impossible to obtain; 

(v) Whether the Subject Member has already provided a satisfactory 
remedy (e.g. apologising); 

(w) Whether the matter is suitable for informal resolution and the Member 
complained of is amenable to such an approach. 

 
 

7.0 WHAT THE MONITORING OFFICER CAN DO 
 
7.1 When the Monitoring Officer has considered the complaint, he/she can: 
 

(a) Decide to take no further action in respect of the complaint, whilst 
providing reasons for such a decision; 

(b) Ask the complainant for additional information, with reasons; 
(c) Refer your complaint for investigation; 
(d) Determine to use other steps rather than investigation, i.e. to resolve 

the complaint informally without the need for a formal investigation; or 
(e) Refer the complaint to the Police or other regulatory agency if the 

complaint identifies criminal conduct or a breach of other regulations by 
any person. 

 
7.2 There is no right of appeal against the Monitoring Officer’s decision on 

assessment. 
 
8.0 A DECISION TO TAKE NO FURTHER ACTION 
 
8.1 Reasons for taking no further action include: 
 

(a) That the subject matter of the allegation is outside the jurisdiction of the 
Joint Governance Committee; 

(b) That the allegation does not appear to disclose a failure by the Member 
to comply with the Code of Members’ Conduct when acting in that 
capacity; 

29



 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 6 

(c) The information submitted by the complainant is insufficient to enable 
the Monitoring Officer to reach a decision; 

(d) The matter of the complaint has already been the subject of a previous 
investigation or of an investigation by another regulator or the subject of 
proceedings in Court; 

(e) The complaint is about something that happened so long ago, that 
there would be little public benefit in taking action now; 

(f) The complaint is too trivial to warrant further action; 
(g) The complaint appears to be simply malicious, vexatious, politically 

motivated or tit-for-tat. 
 

 
9.0 INFORMAL RESOLUTION 
 
9.1 If the Monitoring Officer decides to take steps other than dismissing the 

complaint or referring it for investigation, they will notify the Complainant, the 
Subject Member and the Independent Person.  A decision to take other steps 
precludes an investigation or other disciplinary action. 

 
9.2 If the Subject Member makes a reasonable offer of resolution but the 

Complainant is not willing to accept the offer, the Monitoring Officer will take 
account of this in deciding whether the complaint merits a formal investigation. 

 
 
10.0 INVESTIGATIONS 
 
10.1 Should the Monitoring Officer, after having consulted with the Independent 

Person, and having concluded their assessment and considered informal 
resolution, decide that the matter should be investigated, they may conduct 
that investigation themselves, or delegate to another Investigating Officer, to 
investigate the matter on behalf of the Monitoring Officer. Such Investigating 
Officer may be a Deputy Monitoring Officer, another Officer of the Council, or 
an external appointment. 

 
10.2 The investigation will be concluded in private and will result in an Investigator’s 

Report, which will be shared with the Complainant, the Subject Member and 
the Independent Person. If the investigation identifies, in the view of the 
Monitoring Officer, that there is evidence that it is more likely than not, that the 
Subject Member has breached the Code of Conduct, then a meeting will be 
called of the Standards Sub-Committee of the Joint Governance Committee, 
to hear and determine the matter. 

 
10.3 The Subject Member will be informed of the decision of the Monitoring Officer 

to call such a meeting. The Subject Member has the right to consult with the 
Independent Member who the Monitoring Officer has assigned to the case, 
and who has been involved in the assessment stage. The outcome of the 
investigation is reported to the Standards Sub-Committee, and may result in a 
hearing before that Sub-Committee, which is likely to be held in public.   

 
 

30



 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 7 

11.0 THE STANDARDS SUB-COMMITTEE OF THE JOINT GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE 

 
11.1 The Joint Governance Committee operates in accordance with the Joint 

Committee Agreement between Adur District Council and Worthing Borough 
Council. The terms of reference of the Joint Governance Committee are set 
out in Part 3 of each Council’s Constitution. 

 
11.2 A Sub-Committee of the Joint Governance Committee will be convened to 

hear and determine any individual complaints that a Member has breached 
the Code of Conduct, which are referred to it by the Monitoring Officer. 

 
11.3 The Sub-Committee will consist of 6 Members: 3 Members of each of Adur 

District Council and Worthing Borough Council reflecting the political balance 
of each of the Councils. It is permissible to have a maximum of 1 Member of 
each Authority’s Executive on the Sub-Committee. 

 
11.4 The Sub-Committee may co-opt 1 Independent Person for each matter, to 

advise the Sub-Committee on Standards matters. Usual practice is for the 
Independent Person who was involved in the assessment of the complaint to 
be co-opted onto the Committee for that particular meeting where the 
complaint will be heard and determined.  

 
 The Independent Person co-opted onto the Sub-Committee will not be entitled 

to vote at the meeting. 
 
 The Independent Person will be entitled to retire to the adjournment room 

when the Sub-Committee consider and determine their decision. 
 
 The views of the Independent Person should be given in front of the 

Monitoring Officer and the Subject Member, and the public and press if 
present. 

 
11.5 The Sub-Committee will co-opt one Member of the Parish Council to the Sub-

Committee when meeting to hear and determine a complaint that a Parish 
Councillor has breached the Parish Code of Conduct. The Co-opted Parish 
Councillor will not be from the same Parish Council as the Parish Councillor 
subject to the complaint. 

 
The Co-opted Parish Councillor will not be entitled to vote at the meeting. 
  

 The Parish Councillor will be entitled to retire to the adjournment room when 
the Sub-Committee consider and determine their decision. 

 
 The views of the Parish Councillor should be given in front of the Monitoring 

Officer and the Subject Members, and the public and press if present. 
 
11.6 The Sub-Committee has the power to co-opt, in an advisory capacity only, any 

person who is an Independent Person at another Local Authority to advise the 
Sub-Committee on such terms as the Joint Governance Committee may 

31



 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 8 

determine and agree with the person concerned and the Local Authority and in 
accordance with the Localism Act 2011 and any relevant regulations. 

 
11.7 Decisions made at a Sub-Committee of the Joint Governance Committee shall 

be by way of a show of hands. Where the Sub-Committee is determining, 
following an investigation, whether or not the Code of Members’ Conduct has 
been breached, the decision shall be made by a simple majority, subject to 
paragraph 11.8 and 11.9 below.  

 
11.8 Where the Sub-Committee is determining, following an investigation, whether 

or not a breach of the Code has occurred and they fail to reach a decision 
upon the matter by a majority of their votes, this is an unresolved decision. An 
unresolved decision shall be referred to the Chairmen of the Joint Governance 
Committee with a view to resolution by discussion and negotiation and, where 
appropriate, referral to the Joint Governance Committee for a decision. 

 
11.9 Where the Sub-Committee is determining, following an investigation, whether 

or not a breach of the Code has occurred and there is a simple majority vote 
which indicated that there has been a breach of the Code, then if the majority 
of those Members who are Members of the same Council as the Subject 
Member voted against such a resolution, the matter shall not be determined 
but shall stand deferred to a meeting of the full Council of that Council for 
determination.    

 
 12.0 PROCEDURE FOR MEETING OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE OF THE JOINT 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE SITTING TO HEAR AND DETERMINE AN 
ALLEGATION OF A BREACH OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
12.1 Firstly the Chairperson will introduce all parties and Members and Co-opted 

Members of the Committee and will explain the procedure for the meeting. 
 
12.2 The Committee will give consideration to excluding the press and public from 

the meeting but only do so in exceptional circumstances. It is generally 
considered that the public interest in the matter will outweigh the interests of 
the individual, bearing in mind the individual is a holder of public office. Advice 
will be taken from the Legal Advisor to the Committee on this point. 

 
12.3 The Subject Member is entitled to be represented at the hearing. 
 
12.4 The Monitoring Officer, or their representative, will outline the Council’s case 

and call witnesses, who are likely to include the Investigating Officer (if 
different from the Monitoring Officer) and the complainant. After each witness 
is called they should come forwards to give their evidence and return to the 
gallery once they have given their evidence and answered any questions. 

 
12.5 After each individual witness gives evidence for the Council, the Subject 

Member (or their representative) may ask questions of the Monitoring Officer 
or the Witness, through the Chairperson, immediately after they have given 
evidence. Following which, Committee Members may ask any questions of the 

32



 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 9 

Monitoring Officer or the Councils’ witnesses immediately after the Subject 
Member has done so. 

 
12.6 The Subject Member or their representative will then outline their case and call 

witnesses. After each witness is called they should come forwards to give their 
evidence and return to the gallery once they have given their evidence and 
answered any questions. 

 
12.7 The Monitoring Officer (or their representative) may ask any questions of the 

Subject Member and their witnesses, through the Chairperson, immediately 
after they have given evidence. Following which, the Committee Members 
may ask questions of the Subject Member or their witnesses immediately after 
the Monitoring Officer has done so. 

 
12.8 The Monitoring Officer will then be offered an opportunity of a final comment 

and summing up. Then the Subject Member will be offered an opportunity of a 
final comment and summing up. 

 
12.9 The views of the Independent Person (and the Parish Representative when 

considering a Parish complaint) will be sought and will be given with the 
Monitoring Officer, Subject Member and any press and public present. 

 
12.10 Members of the Sub-Committee will adjourn into private session to determine 

the matter. The Legal Advisor to the Committee will be present throughout any 
discussion, as will the Independent Person (and the Parish Representative 
when considering a Parish complaint).  

 
12.11 The Sub-Committee will reconvene to take a vote in public, deliver their 

decision and provide reasons. 
 
12.12 There is no right of appeal against the decision of the Sub-Committee. 
 
12.13 It should be noted that if the Subject Member accepts that there has been a 

breach of the Code of Conduct as alleged and evidenced in the Investigating 
Officer’s report then the Sub-Committee may determine that the procedure 
above is not appropriate; they may dispense with the calling of witnesses, 
formally find a breach of the Code of Conduct and deal with the issues set out 
at paragraph 13 below. 

 
 
13.0 MITIGATION  
 
13.1 Having heard the Sub-Committee’s decision, if a breach has been found, the 

Legal Advisor to the Sub-Committee will outline the possible sanctions 
available.  

 
13.2 The Monitoring Officer or their Representative has the opportunity to make 

representations relating to appropriate sanctions, to the Sub-Committee. The 
Subject Member or his Representative then have an opportunity to address 
the Sub-Committee on mitigation and sanctions. 

33



 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 10 

 
13.3 The views of the Independent Person and the Parish Representative (if a 

Parish matter) will be sought and given in the meeting. 
 
13.4 The Sub-Committee will then retire into private session, with the Legal 

Advisor, to come to a decision about sanctions. The decision together with 
reasons will then be announced in the meeting by the Chairperson of the Sub-
Committee. 

 
13.5 The decision of the Sub-Committee will be confirmed in writing within 5 

working days. 
 
13.6 The rules of natural justice apply to the hearing and determination of the Sub-

Committee. 
 
 
14.0 SANCTIONS 
 
14.1 The Sub-Committee has no power to suspend or disqualify a Member. 
 
14.2 Any sanction imposed must be proportionate and reasonable to the 

circumstances of the matter. 
 
14.3 Any sanction imposed may not prevent the Member from being able to 

perform their duties as a Member.  
 
14.4 Any sanctions imposed in respect of a Parish Councillor can only be 

recommendations from the Sub-Committee to the Parish Council. The District 
and Borough has no power to impose sanctions on a Parish Councillor and 
any recommendation would need to be agreed by the Parish. 

 
14.5 Sanctions may include: 
 

o Censure 
o Publishing a decision that the Member has been found to have 

breached the Code of Conduct 
o Recommending to the Group Leader or the Council that the Member be 

removed from any or all Committees or Sub-Committees. 
o Instructing the Monitoring Officer to arrange training 
o Recommending to the Group Leader or the Council that the Member be 

removed from outside body appointments 
o Withdrawal of facilities. 

 
  
15.0 WITHDRAWAL OF A COMPLAINT 
 
15.1 Once a valid complaint has been submitted it can only be withdrawn before 

assessment by the Monitoring Officer.  Withdrawal requires the consent of the 
Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person and the Parish 
Representation, as appropriate.  Consent will normally be given.  However, in 

34



 

District Council of Adur – Standards Procedure Rules - 01/12/2016 - SCS103/515054 

   Part 4, Section 8 –Page 11 

considering a request from the complainant to withdraw the complaint, the 
Monitoring Officer will consider: 

 
(a) The reasons for the requests; 
(b) Whether the public interest in pursuing action outweighs the request; 
(c) If the public interest suggests the matter should proceed, the extent to 

which it can proceed without the complainant’s involvement; 
(d) Whether there is an identifiable reason for the request, e.g. improper 

pressure that has been brought to bear. 
 
After assessment by the Monitoring Officer, a complaint cannot formally be 
withdrawn without the Monitoring Officer or the Standards Sub-Committee, in 
consultation with the Independent Person and Parish Representative, as 
appropriate, depending upon the stage to which the action has reached, taking 
into account the request for the matter not to proceed further. 

 
 
16.0 VARIATION 
 
16.1 The Monitoring Officer may vary this procedure in any particular instance 

where he or she is of the opinion that such variation is desirable and does not 
conflict with the statutory requirements, nor the principles of natural justice. 

 
  
 

35



36



Investigator's Report

1. Introduction

On 24~h June 2019, Susan Sale, the Monitoring Officer, received a complaint from Cllr

Geoff Patmore, a Lancing Parish councillor, that Cllr Emma Evans had breached the

Members' Code of Conduct (the Code) by referring to Cllr Patmore as, "a tosser", in a

Facebook post made on 10th June 2019. Cllr Patmore stated that the comment showed a

lack of respect towards him.

The Monitoring Officer assessed the complaint as required by the Code and found that the

code was engaged and, if proven, the conduct would amount to a breach. She proposed

that the matter be dealt with by way of informal resolution namely a written apology from

Cllr Evans to Cllr Patmore. Cllr Evans declined to make an apology and the matter was

therefore referred for investigation.

2. Cllr Evans

Cllr Evans was elected as an Adur District Councillor in 2008. She is the Executive

Member for the Environment and held this position at the time of the Facebook post. Cllr

Evans' portfolio includes responsibility for parks and grounds maintenance, allotments and

dog control. The council's records show that Cllr Evans last attended Code of Conduct

training in June 2010.

3. Background to the complaint

The Facebook posts referred to in this complaint were posted on The New Shoreham by

Sea Group (the Group). This is closed Facebook account although the public facing

Facebook home page states that the group has over 10,000 members (as at 11
tH

September 2019).

On 10th June 2019 a member of the Group posted a message concerning her husband

being bitten by a dog that was off the lead in Buckingham Park. The post states that the

incident took place near to the children's playground.

There followed a series of posts from various members of the Group giving their views on

dogs particularly in relation to dogs being kept on leads within parks.

Cllr Evans posted comments in response to other Group members' posts providing her

opinion on the issue and an explanation of the dog restrictions within Adur.

Following some further posts, including posts made by Cllr Evans, Cllr Patmore posted the

following comment:

37

tcourt_2
Text Box
APPENDIX 3




Why aren't ADC enforcing the legal requirement of dogs must be on a lead Emma Evans

Wasdunn you are the ADC Cabinet member responsible

The following response was posted by Cllr Evans 6 minutes later:

Geoff Patmore as usual popping up to try and point score politically, even when sat at my

dying dads bedside you didn't letup. You're a tosser and as you know 1 don't respond to

your constant posts tagging me because it's like giving attention to a badly behaved

child...now carry on stamping your feet and accusing me of not doing my job and 1'll just

go back to ignoring you

In response, Cllr Patmore posted the following a few minutes later:

Answer the perfectly non political reasonable question from a resident please Why aren't

ADC enforcing the legal requirement of dogs must be on a lead. Cllr Emma Evans

Wasdunn you are the ADC Cabinet member responsible. I did not know when /asked you

another perfectly reasonable question of your situation. You told me to F—k off 1 recall.

You quickly deleted the remark when 1 wished you well as I recall. now you call me a

Tosser that is appalling language from a senior ADC Cabinet member

Cllr Evans then posted:

Geoff Patmore

A further post was made from another group member asking Cllr Patmore to clarify the

legal requirement referred to and a further post was made. I have not seen any further

posts on this topic.

4. Adur District Council Code of Conduct

The Code for Adur District Council was adopted by the council on 1 St May 2015. All

Members are required to comply with the Code.

The Code applies whenever a Member conducts the business of Adur District Council or

acts, claims to act or gives the impression they are acting as a representative of Adur

District Council or in their official capacity as a Member of Adur District Council —

paragraph 4.1.3.

Paragraph 4.2.1 (a) and (b) of the Code states that:

When acting as a Member of Adur District Council a Member must:

(a) Treat others with respect;

(b) Not conduct themselves in a manner which is contrary to the Council's duty to

promote and maintain high standards of conduct of Members.

38



5. Investigation

As part of my investigation, i have reviewed the Facebook posts which were supplied to

me byway of screenshots from Cllr Patmore. I also met separately with both Cllr Patmore

and Cllr Evans. I have no personal relationship with either Cllr Patmore or Cllr Evans and

have only met them in a professional capacity. Cllr Evans and Cllr Patmore were given the
opportunity to comment on my draft report.

A summary of the complaint is set out at paragraph 3 above and the screenshots of the

Facebook conversation is attached as Appendix 1.

6. Interview with Cllr Patmore

Cllr Patmore stated that he had been a member of the Group and was following the

conversation regarding dogs. The conversation had started out about dog walkers and

runners but had then moved to dog enforcement. Cllr Patmore stated that he was

concerned with the safety of children as the dog biting incident which started the Facebook

conversation involved a dog biting a resident near to a children's playground. Cllr Patmore

said that he did not feel that Cllr Evans was answering the points raised by Group

members concerning dog enforcement and therefore asked Cllr Evans why the council

was not enforcing the requirement for dogs to be on leads. He stated that there was no

political element to this request and he felt that Cllr Evans' response to his question, both

as a resident and a parish councillor, was disrespectful and demeaning towards him.

Cllr Patmore stated that Cllr Evans had previously sworn at him on Facebook and this was

the reference made in his response to Cllr Evans' post. This related to a different

Facebook conversation some months before. He stated that he had no knowledge about

the health of Cllr Evans' father at the time he posted his comments. He stated that Cllr

Evans subsequently deleted her response.

Cllr Patmore confirmed that he would still accept an apology from Cllr Evans as an

alternative to an investigation. However, he felt that this should be a public apology as the

comments were posted on the Group page and were visible to a large number of people.

7. Interview with Cllr Evans

Cllr Evans stated she is a member of the Group which she described as a community

group page. She stated that there is a separate page for debate and the Group's page was

designed to be anon-political one. Cllr Evans confirmed that she had posted the

comments set out above. She stated that the account she used to post the comments was

her personal Facebook account. She had set up a professional Facebook account for

council business but does not use it. However, local residents know that she is a councillor

and she said she was often the first point of call when an issue arose and contact would

be made via her personal Facebook account. Although she could not be certain, Cllr

39



Evans thought she had been tagged into the conversation regarding dogs which is how

she became aware of the comments.

Cllr Evans stated that she was unsure why she had responded to Cllr Patmore's post on

this occasion. She stated that Cllr Patmore had previously tagged her into conversations,

sometimes twice a day. She stated that Cllr Patmore could be obsessive about a particular

topic and she had taken to not responding to his posts. She thought that she may have

responded on this occasion because Cllr Patmore had made an incorrect assertion about

the dog controls in Adur and if she did not respond, this would go unchallenged. She

stated that she felt that Cllr Patmore threw out allegations on Facebook which council

officers could not rebut.

Cllr Evans accepted that she had posted the response calling Cllr Patmore "a tosser".

Cllr Evans stated that she was not prepared to offer Cllr Patmore a public apology.

8. Findings of the investigation

have firstly considered whether or not the Code is engaged in the context of this

complaint. Cllr Evans' states that her Facebook account is a private one although she

acknowledged that people know she is a councillor and they contact her via Facebook in

connection with council business. She acknowledged that she would respond to such

matters raised with her in this way although she did not routinely use Facebook for political

matters.

Cllr Evans posted comments on the Group in response to other Group members

discussing dogs and dog enforcement within Adur. Dog enforcement comes within Cllr

Evans' portfolio. The Facebook posts made by Cllr Evans directly relate to the dog control

provisions that are in place in Adur. Cllr Patmore's question to Cllr Evans regarding dog

enforcement specifically refers to her role as, "the ADC Cabinet member responsible". Cllr

Evans responds some six minutes later stating:

Geoff Patmore as usual popping up to try and point score politically, even when sat at my

dying dads bedside you didn't let up. You're a tosser and as you know 1 don't respond to

your constant posts tagging me because it's like giving attention to a badly behaved

child...now carry on stamping your feet and accusing me of not doing my job and 1'll just

go back to ignoring you

Cllr Evans' reply refers to her job as an Executive Member of Adur District Council. An

earlier post made by Cllr Evans in this conversation refers to the dog control measures in

place within Adur and a programme of replacement playgrounds by the council, both of

which fall within Cllr Evans' portfolio. Given this and that Cllr Evans acknowledged that

residents are aware that she is a councillor and will contact her via Facebook to discuss

council business, it is my opinion that Cllr Evans was conducting the business of Adur

District Council or was acting, claiming to act or gave the impression that she was acting

as a representative of Adur District Council or in her official capacity as a Member of Adur

District Council and as such the Code applies to the Facebook posts Cllr Evans posted.

40



have then considered whether or not Cllr Evans' response to Cllr Patmore in which she
calls him, "a tosser" failed to treat Cllr Patmore with respect and whether her conduct has
is contrary to the council's duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct of
Members.

Cllr Patmore's question to Cllr Evans is expressed in neutral language and follows on from
the earlier conversation between Group members, including Cllr Evans, regarding dogs
and dog controls.

Whilst Cllr Evans' may have objected to the Cllr Patmore's incorrect assertion about the
dog controls in place within Adur, the use of the derogatory and offensive expression
"tosser" in Cllr Evans' response to Cllr Patmore fails to show, in my opinion, respect
towards him.

The post was made on a community group Facebook page. Although the Facebook group
is a closed one which is not accessible to non-group members, it's large membership
means that a large number of people could have viewed Cllr Evans' post. The screenshots
provided by Cllr Patmore show posts from two individuals after Cllr Evans' response, one
of which specifically refers to Cllr Evans' post.

As well as being a Member, Cllr Evans is the Executive Member for Environment and, as
such, should set an example to others. Her use of offensive language in this case did not,
in my view, promote or maintain high standards of Members.

Although there is reference in Cllr Patmore's response to a previous occasion where Cllr

Evans allegedly swore at him on Facebook, this did not form part of this complaint and
have therefore not considered it further. It is mentioned only to put the responses into

context.

9. Conclusion

It is my opinion that the Code of Conduct applies to the Facebook posts made by Cllr
Evans and that the language used in her response to Cllr Patmore breached the Code for

the reasons set out above.

Louise Mathie

Senior Lawyer and Deputy Monitoring Officer

1 St October 2019

41



~~~Ik-,►~ n l
iPad

< (~
17:36

fi facebook.com

► The New Shoreham by Sea Group
Yesterday at 08:29 ~ pis;

~: sir ~

U ~ 0~

*** Dog attack Buckingham Park ***

To all Buckingham Park users, please take care when using the park. My husband was bitten today

by a Rottweiler or similar whilst out on his run.

The owners were at least 100 yards away and the dog was not on a lead.

He has teeth marks but luckily no serious injury as he was able to shout at the dog and the owner.

We will be reporting it to the police.

It sickens me to think that some people behave so irresponsibly, particularly as the incident

occurred right next to the kids playground.

~~~~~

Like

The admin I~as temporarily turned off commenting.

~~~ 56

View previous comments,..

Have u re orted this to the do warden..?p 9

un Sun More

10 repli~•~.

have stopped going to that park because I have a dog that sometimes doesn't like all
dogs or joggers and lots of dog walkers use it now sometimes as many as 9 dogs off
leads and quite often have no idea where they all are or even control them 1 keep mine
on a lead now but dogs off leads will still come up and I have asked dog owners to call
them back but most of the time it falls on deaf ears or abuse too stressful so I walk
elsewhere now the park should be for everyone to enjoy respect for all using it I hope
your husband is ok ~•-,

un uli D~ute

[; n~~~lies

hope he is ok? This is my worst nightmare!

un Si,n M~~r~

1 ....... I .-1 1...,.... ~.. M ....., ~ h ...~... I:....42



sad 4 17~l~ 67%~!
• trCed~o► tom

v~.. uie ~..a~ ~r~a a ws,v~.~ M~~o-e+ ~n+y .i~u~ ~wi~.~

le ywu partner up to daio with 1*f iol~nu~? R*plly mpat~nt.

And how is hr doing naw? Q

.~~

ukd to take my yaki 1htn, bW the pt~l Iwnpod by o 6~*rn~n N~cp ante, and tn~ gvnui
~~si laughed. Had a ~'lar problem on the reek.

ArW now because I Aeep her on her Fead, people assume she's dangerous b!.

be carolut!

So snrty to hv~r IMs and p~J yrour hubby Is ok, I ~m A rwv~or and roqulerty horo dgps
chase mt a sfww apgrbss+on. I wa6 bcten IaM ylrK running abng the rives. 6xncrs
always say it is rol ~e the dog etc bu: I em naw rwRy nervous of dogs 6ecauu of
1►iese sltwtlons which I krww makes tRinps wave. So fruslnung +tun orvne+s have ~o
conuol ~1 ~s1 don`s seem Io c,re. Tt+rnk~uey many rsspons+bk dog owners ous ihert
(oo ma

Oh no ...Iran round Bucki~yAam park yesterday for the first lino and Ihouyht wfiat a Nca
roueo .. not eo wto mw I

,~ r

A twp Is s~ food ns n awn~t Va~nf 11 to be,Aswaatron dsssos wha4lhe dog can laxn
to rnir Gately with Mhcr dogs ere worth a lry. if this doesn't wwk keep k on a lead ar
rtr~frtle h +M~n oul, the dogs dil veod to Ihem. ~

i~,u.

I~n4 it a dogs r,~tutal iftatincl to wool tD viotltt br cha3inp 0nd attacking hvlrerrr
misgUlded that mdy seam?
IMnk If both o~nersldog~ and the ~urne~s 11 know you shou~'t have too etc etc but
Wa are ~tiMro ►w ero) woto mOr9 bw3re)cons+dante of Bath ethor ~n tho respact of lwn
UoDfl~unnaro pp IikolY In r~~cl wtwn they maol o Q. i) you o~4 rtw~np !hero it't probable!
that dags are ikely to chase you so stop ruming ....1 ktrow you shouidn't have too(!) ...
IM~n the volume of inatio Iswe: s~o likely to decreaso, 0

,.

43



+•H! R 17~~7 ~ bTk~1
i l~.ifioo~. can

Th+s was prodetay Cut sw~Ws W Ihlr►gs, dog wlu chasr end ~a+r~at~rnot bite mwa~irunning
Ip►poi 1.o Cal, sq~dro~. dop, loop«, q'~ ty cw~Ulo w 4wn~f nNd~ to soak Profoss~ons~ ho~P
(Aol a person using puilelwnenyave~sne) end keep dng an (esd unli they have done
Vai+ln0.1 work with ~hfs and do0 to day apQressian eve~Y week. I'm so nary thus hA~
hAppDllgd l0 yt3V, W4 ~hOt~d All bt Ob0! t4 4h~tQ (hR pAfk WIIh4UI MW/ylJ1N1 OMl bQ
fQ5PdI151b10 }Of Wf! d~G.

i~

TtNnko la ap tho audpa~irb wado.l wiata thl~ poa~ 1►~s mor++inp in shat and to rnroo
awa~anrss,~. na Jud~tn►tnt.

Wa aae an ~osport~fbt+ log wth other inn our community ~ iwrru+~ arb enlmri ah4~, io►c
pail esrc of each, v

n

prwlhcr sass of bud pwno~s chatlmg sway vrhilo ~►~elr dog w►eekp havoc vrosponsiWa anu 1
iun a cmad deg and am v~iy rt:ndlut of at~.er peopto aM Ihe+r loosa dogs

11 berg cbse to 1Ne playgrwnd a~oa rvilly ~6as No "»tw1 if h was a chAO rwrrnp
Intl»ed d a manl" gwtibn Tlx duq vK~uk~ prot~lY ►~'a Opno aha tlr ch~~d end Ood
knpwa hflw bsd this Kould nave ended.
1~here aMcdd ab~olutsl~ be ra tfog wimaut ~ ~Go~h near play p~oun~t seas Even the most
wd-Irdr~ed dog cnr► t1 II bko. l h~va {a+y ghee uP takfn~ my child fo Buci~gh+m Park
exactly because of a~ the loso doya around it Is a common prxik~ and }uct a matter of
time ~mta a dog bitm a cMd np~n - it hbs okrady Iuppenad end the+o wa even o {mi
on here about the Incident Shaehem hoe a shortage at playgrounds eReady end not
be+np obis tG uaa Ouc~inp~um p+pk due to brospo svble dog awia~. ~x a ah~mr. Thtira
shtwicl rtdly be home pdity 4~ p~aca about 1h~s as eh~Fdrrn w~.un anJ Oogs w~1 clwse.
ir~rs ~~~ wr~~ asxn dn.
Hope you ►wsb+nd recovrrs loon O

~rep~s-i

make 6ure dog watke~ knovrs also ~.x

[}Oqs On (COdi n pub4C S/~iCOS, rosy 1 have o ~escua Stalfy who s~upglss With otho. da4s,
c~xlifniY ~w1d [luck'sngh~m psi► I Ntve wttnar~~d oyhHea cortefip 1n to Iho pArk lat inei~
AoQs off the lead at aye of the bottom ec~tlaa~oes, the drops are half vray up the park aNnust
Mlo►o tn~ ownoro ari tlua,ph tM pall, Her con ownrrs ciao up otter their nnimnh whop
lhry CAn ot~1y just PbOut se0 ►heft kt s1o1M Mf1Ud lhlT +daquitYly WhOn U1~fe Arc
Chi101D11, Id~jpdf3 a11d p1hOt tlOQi pIOSMI~

. , rrylieJ

44



:~a:f 9 17:i? - + 6J%~ ~

Replies 10 c comment on ,post .:, r, r c'.i

U~gs en 1ead~ k~ t>ub'rc rpxot, +a6y. f h4vt a ►oicuo 53atiy ~sfq ►bipply~ wllh olha do0+,, i
certaW~ a~.old Butl~.~gham part. i have witnessed owners coming h to the part iet Uxir
tlags ol~ srN~ load at ono at Iho t~vt►a+n cv~tru~cei, the dW~s a+~ h~G v~,~y up ihb R+i1k Wnos~
briwe Il,e uY~ne~a ura livovyh tht gatr. N~ can oeiv~on cie~r up itt~r fhelr OusrMb wrien
lhcy can only rysl abaul 6n 1n+m lot sbtt~ cantrd thorn adequalof~r when ihert ilb
ctikfrur~, K,Q~ri onC other dnpi p~os~*it

EmnuEv+mNriWonn
,nriy punish the many fa the lew iuz~sporwote dog owners ¢ut there.

It7 cicAiiy not an ifaUist! r+ddant it fhe ttwtsd h~~e is u~yttwtg !o go by Ehima Evans
Wa~dtmn 7

rely, w4~o do you suggest the merr/ Ihousaritls at doq owr~ere in Adur
o.r+ctra ~r~ufr dopt7

s ~+

lc'i, ~~n. ~ hole you ago vrt~ If t~~n ar~++m4tt1~ nn IMti threMi ura to be Go~oyed lhae iin
a6anoush~ issues and nurtterays peoFr?e are wnce~nad abort 11~e pa+k, I avid the pars
n[sx I have ~ni~ usM it A Ic'N ~imo~ pnd iwd hsue+ vilh bofc dogs nn moss of Ihosr
occaelorns. I agree that a t~ge rx~nber of doh arn~vs ar4 responsttr~e and a good numteer
~1 dnp Ow~Mii think lt~~y am ra~lli~tc. Ycw at ~'I p[~p{~le M~nY the ryfnt~em vnlh Ilb
~uy~try pilclvrs a+~d tnr pal~niy Q,ny Surxi~y nwrn*x~ ei~anirg u(~ tlo~g c.:t tralon Iho t~s
tw+d Iran 1 rkr~t knew Ihs an+m+t Mr, i do accept tMn is a cunhrem Q

i +►q*ro t1uH tr e Olstmca wmn paop~o pro ar+ay Irani ih+~~ dgis iE a roal
~rcLlem How are Ihey'in ronira' bl t)+r~r dag~, ~s the la~v states they should bed

r

45



rvA F 17:3b ~ i a7}~ t?
• babo~ tan

Replies la ca~mrnl on ~ pool :'ch rvsl

II bi`dtlQ c1ASA IO lh~? piAyq~ound area r~a1~y rains tho '~rfiol M q was A c►~d running
insliad of ~ nunT" qudsUo~. The dag would prp6aWy luxe gala p11er iha chlid +nd God
krwws tr~N bad tlti3 rr0u10 haNtr vntllC.
ihrro th~wld ~bsolutety ix na d>p w+~hou1 w Wash nunr piny Around ~insti Evc.'~ tha most
weg•Ualned doy can atli bAe. l hate {artig pi.~n up takirq my chrid to BucM~ngham Paris

o~~cIIY ~Causb of as iha ~otn ~F~ya Mnu~~d. II re a cou~nwn prrcUre ~n~ wtit a malts* M
t~mo unl~ o dog bites s Chid Again - II has a.~ebdy happcnud and Ihe~a was ovan a past
on hare about eho IrxWonl. 5i~Wetuim ►ws n chappq o~ play~q~ounds nt~aa~y and not
beM+p oWr to uty Huckinphfm {u+k due to irretpondbt~ dop twnnrs i; a st~me. Thar
should realy be some pa~t~ In ~ace:~out this as children wit run and dogs w~ chzse-
Tf~at'~ Ant wluT tiolh do
Mopa yrou hust~nu reG~~~s wSr+. O

~~

Ertwn~ trim W~W,Inn
J cam cnly dsaprQe Wllh moat of wtut yw havr said! Tf~o mo~or~ty of ci:.p owncrc

air res~orulb+e, iher! aye eKcept+ens o~ Course Ihe~o rc ~o requirement fa dogs to LY
kepi on {eaAs a5 long as the oN~r has control. No dogs ue snowed ►Mltrn the ►encea
pla~oundn In trro Auks h Adur Oogs mush also ba on fcads on pr bment. Imo lacw of
playporks witivr, Shgreham-by •Sra an Niclw Adur a~oa .w hm {fkmy and unf!be mast
cocmcllA rro in /ldur hsvo a p~t~amme of rcp~ace+Twnt tMl scn t p4yQ►wncl per ye~~
~ep~aCCd Each ptayp3rk ~s uispe~_ted weelJy for Iss:~es Q

E~ Evans VYoodutn f rm w~► aiwxs t►wt dogs xb na alloaad Irc.+clo ma pts/ aroas
olsp apnea tl~a! thr. m►~iHy pl Qny q~n4~~ ~r~p ~pspo~, thsnklu~y.
The fart that ~Mre Is no rscptirerr~ent dov dogs tP be kept on leads •as bnp as ens armor
has conl~ot" Is thn n+x1 prohlbm. Nu one ~riA avc+ bo ibb to pvx~nfee a dop i~on'1 Mic
of chase, dump and I~wt a child. Fro dog vta~e+ can ever guerintes Inal, even resparu~b{e
dop mvnttt. Even Iht mast wati pa+nwi dop can still bite 1 don't krwty If yogi own n Cog 11
ao~•~ a~ cno m«nom, nun r+~vo h ~ha Rash txn it ~cu do, taw ►now vu1, No ono can
quxantee a dop won't bite And 1 am taAct~p is that there zhowd be an area around arty
pla~ou~rd with no tio~i a qoQ~ on Irathes, axoctiy be~a~ne o11ha prcwse no o++~
cam say a dog edl) nt~er ~:e and cfill~m wfu ion erpund
Rc Ino number of (play ~irras in Shofahtm, p~rhpp~ 1 nm mhfrMamrd, 4o could w1~ d+aar
let rtre kradw, Rt~al other play grounds ore I~a+e In 5lwreham, apxl Irom 8uckhlpham
Pz~M, Beach G~eon end the one near•~s» the itopewckte7 Thanks, Q

r.• r

ETR+s Evans Was~nn

46



xx1 "7 17:34 f~79iI~!
t 4c~boN csm

piltXl~e Colt/W, Iq Kt1tl~1 Off 1llo CpWRG1Ilk If o GY~~~ ~; ~OU~70 5110 ty17 10 Sit M/0 WiT

Most ryc4sic xv most pratelul c~7horF W~1 ciao on by. Ttwro i~ poori pnd bad in rvary
be+:ca Oflesn't mnan ono er+uukl be bm~rd D

E~ want Wi~dunn

t hrm en evon cvt~r c•nc ~3

Y/hy ertn'1 ADt enforc+ng t~~e legef r~v6u+rwril M Hopi niusi be on a loaf Emma Evwnf
w,sdun~ rou no ~n~ Aoc eal~„e~ n~n,na respartsih~e

Em+*u Er~n1 WJWun1t

Oeolf Prlmorr as uia,xl ~dpph~p up to Vy ro ~wir~t ctur~ {~alnK~ily , rvm~ ~Y~an set a1 my
dy;~g dry, be~~ide you ck+sn'1 IN, up. YauYa ~ tosser end as yw krww I dati't resporsd /o
yoex wrrtant poi1R lappsq me t~CausO I!'s 6fio 4~vinp atlanibn to a hac6!y hohavcd child
rwn enrry on xtamp+~g Yata leaf and oecusmq nre of not do-fq my Eob erg 1'ii i~st do back ro
ignain8 YW

~1 Oeol1 v.U~+ao

~j~ ~rti~t tFfi prrioc~t~y +wn po~llltal tea+~etwo quesngn trim a resident p~eero Y~'ny Meg;1
A[)C t~+Nadng tho leyal+ertuirert~dnl of dogs must Uo on w ksA
Cllr Emma Evans Watclunn ypu aip ihr ~[1C Cabin[i mamdM rn4pc~~lbt4 I rta not 4 now
Wf~n I ~>L.ed y~~u mwthar ro~sonabte quesS~ori of yow s~uetron ,You told me to f •-k oll l
reel .You quickly de:etad the remark »hRn I wlsheti you we'J as (feu:ll .~+1 Y~ ~@~~ me a
Tasccr t~vl It rppnli~~q la~gun9s bom s t~.nr AD{' Cd6~no1 member

~. .

t~mm► Eram tH+sdUnn
Otro1f PaknOtt

(here Is a t~elicy In px~, daas are not stioNCA In rho plat area

47



iP
ad

 
7
4
:
0
1
 

1
7
%
 ~
~

a
 f
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
.
c
o
m

5
1
 m
i
n
s
 

Li
ke

 
M
o
r
e

G
e
o
f
f
 P
a
t
m
o
r
e

W
h
y
 a
re
n'
t 
A
D
C
 e
nf
or
ci
ng
 t
he

 l
eg
al
 r
eq

ui
re

me
nt

 o
f 
d
o
g
s
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 o
n
 a
 l
ea

d 
E
m
m
a
 E
v
a
n
s

W
a
s
d
u
n
n
 y
ou
 a
re
 t
he

 A
D
C
 C
ab
in
et
 m
e
m
b
e
r
 r
es
po
ns
ib
le

E
m
m
a
 E
v
a
n
s
 W
a
s
d
u
n
n

G
e
o
f
f
 P
a
t
m
o
r
e
 a
s
 u
su
al
 p
op
pi
ng
 u
p
 t
o 
tr

y 
to
 p
oi
nt
 s
co
re
 p
ol

it
ic

al
ly

 ,
e
v
e
n
 w
h
e
n
 s
at
 a
t 
m
y

dy
in
g 
d
a
d
s
 b
ed

si
de

 y
ou
 d
id
n'
t 
le
t 
up
. 
Yo
u'
re
 a
 t
os
se
r 
a
n
d
 a
s
 y
o
u
 k
n
o
w
 1 
do
n'
t 
re
sp
on
d 
to

yo
ur
 c
on
st
an
t 
po
st
s 
ta
gg
in
g 
m
e
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
t'

s 
li
ke
 g
iv
in
g 
at
te
nt
io
n 
to

 a
 b
ad
ly
 b
e
h
a
v
e
d
 c
hi

ld
..

.
n
o
w
 c
ar

ry
 o
n
 s
ta
mp
in
g 
yo
ur
 f
ee

t 
a
n
d
 a
cc
us
in
g 
m
e
 o
f 
no
t 
do
in
g 
m
y
 j
ob
 a
n
d
 I

`II
 j
us
t 
g
o
 b
a
c
k
 t
o

ig
no

ri
ng

 y
ou

3
6
 m
i
n
s
 

Li
ke
 

M
o
r
e

G
e
o
f
f
 P
a
t
m
o
r
e

A
n
s
w
e
r
 t
he
 

er
fe
ct
( 

n
o
n
 

ol
it
ic
al
 r
ea
so
na
bl
e 

ue
st
io
n 
f
r
o
m
 a
 r
es

id
en

t 
le
as
 
W
h
 

'
p 

y 
p
 

q
 

p
 

e
 

y 
ar

en
 t

A
D
C
 e
nf
or
ci
ng
 t
he
 l
eg

al
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
 o
f 
d
o
g
s
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 o
n
 a
 l
ea
d

Cl
lr
 E
m
m
a
 E
v
a
n
s
 W
a
s
d
u
n
n
 y
ou
 a
re

 t
he
 A
D
C
 C
ab
in
et
 m
e
m
b
e
r
 r
es
po
ns
ib
le
 .
 I 
di

d 
no
t 
k
n
o
w

w
h
e
n
 I 
as
ke
d 
yo
u 
an
ot
he
r 
re
as
on
ab
le
 q
ue
st
io
n 
of
 y
ou
r 
si
tu
at
io
n 
.Y
ou
 t
ol
d 
m
e
 t
o 
F -
-k
 o
ff

re
ca
ll
 .
Yo
u 
qu

ic
kl

y 
de
le
te
d 
th
e 
re
ma
rk
 w
h
e
n
 I 
wi
sh
ed
 y
o
u
 w
el
l 
a
s
 I 
re
ca
ll
 .
n
o
w
 y
o
u
 c
al

l 
m
e
 a

To
ss
er
 t
ha
t 
is

 a
pp
al
li
ng
 l
an

gu
ag

e 
f
r
o
m
 a
 s
en
io
r 
A
D
C
 C
ab
in
et
 m
e
m
b
e
r

11
 m
i
n
s
 

Li
ke

 
M
o
r
e

E
m
m
a
 E
v
a
n
s
 W
a
s
d
u
n
n

G
e
o
f
f
 P
a
t
m
o
r
e

7
 m
i
n
s
 

Li
i<
~ 

_ 
-_

Wr
it
e 
a 

re
pl

y.
..

48



iP
ad
 

1
8
:
3
0
 

~ 
5
9
%
I
r,

~
~
 f
a
c
e
b
o
o
k
.
c
o
m

_
_
 

__
_

__
,
~
 
E
m
m
a
 E
v
a
n
s
 W
a
s
d
u
n
n

G
e
o
f
f
 P
a
t
m
o
r
e
 a
s
 u
su
al
 p
op
pi
ng
 u
p
 t
o 
tr

y 
to
 p
oi
nt
 s
co
re
 p
ol

it
ic

al
ly

 ,
e
v
e
n
 w
h
e
n
 s
at

 a
t 
m
y

dy
in
g 
d
a
d
s
 b
ed
si
de
 y
o
u
 d
id
n'
t 
le
t 
up
. 
Yo
u'
re
 a
 t
os
se
r 
a
n
d
 a
s
 y
o
u
 k
n
o
w
 I 
do
n'
t 
r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o

yo
ur
 c
on

st
an

t 
po

st
s 
ta
gg
in
g 
m
e
 b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 i
t'
s 
li
ke
 g
iv
in
g 
at
te
nt
io
n 
to
 a
 b
ad
ly
 b
e
h
a
v
e
d
 c
hi
ld
..
.

n
o
w
 c
ar
ry
 o
n
 s
t
a
m
p
i
n
g
 y
ou
r 
fe
et
 a
n
d
 a
cc
us
in
g 
m
e
 o
f 
no
t 
do
in
g 
m
y
 j
ob
 a
n
d
 f

'll
 j
us
t 
g
o
 b
a
c
k
 t
o

ig
no
ri
ng
 y
o
u

G
e
o
f
f
 P
a
t
m
o
r
e

A
n
s
w
e
r
 t
he
 p
er
fe
ct
ly
 n
o
n
 p
ol
it
ic
al
 r
ea
so
na
bl
e 
qu
es
ti
on
 f
r
o
m
 a
 r
es
id
en
t 
pl
ea
se
 W
h
y
 a
re

n'
t

A
D
C
 e
nf

or
ci

ng
 t
he

 l
eg
al
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
 o
f 
d
o
g
s
 m
u
s
t
 b
e
 o
n
 a
 l
ea
d

Cl
ir
 E
m
m
a
 E
v
a
n
s
 W
a
s
d
u
n
n
 y
o
u
 a
re
 t
he
 A
D
C
 C
ab
in
et
 m
e
m
b
e
r
 r
es
po
ns
ib
le
 .
 I 
di
d 
no
t 
k
n
o
w

w
h
e
n
 I 
a
s
k
e
d
 y
o
u
 a
no
th
er
 r
ea
so
na
bl
e 
qu
es
ti
on
 o
f 
yo
ur
 s
it

ua
ti

on
 .
Yo
u 
to

ld
 m
e
 t
o 
F-
-k
 o
ff

re
ca
ll
 .
Yo

u 
qu
ic
kl
y 
de
le
te
d 
th
e 
r
e
m
a
r
k
 w
h
e
n
 I 
w
i
s
h
e
d
 y
o
u
 w
el
l 
a
s
 i 
re
ca
ll
 .
n
o
w
 y
o
u
 c
al
l 
m
e
 a

To
ss
er
 t
ha
t 
is

 a
pp
al
li
ng
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 f
r
o
m
 a
 s
en
io
r 
A
D
C
 C
ab
in
et
 m
e
m
b
e
r

E
m
m
a
 E
v
a
n
s
 W
a
s
d
u
n
~

G
e
o
f
f
 P
a
t
m
o
r
e

`
 

,t
he
re
 i
s 
a 
po

li
cy

 i
n 
pl
ac
e,
 d
o
g
s
 a
re
 n
ot
 a
ll
ow
ed
 i
n 
th
e 
pl
ay
 a
re

a

Ge
fl
ff
 P
a
t
m
o
r
e
 w
h
a
t
 l
eg
al
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
? 
T
h
e
r
e
 i
s 
a
 l
eg
al
 r
eq
ui
re
me
nt
 a
ro
un
d 
li
ve
st
oc
k.
 P
ar
ks

ar
e 
a 
pu

bl
ic

 a
re
a 
fo

r 
al
l 
to
 e
nj

oy
, 
pe
rs
on
al
ly
 I 
ex
er
ci
se
 m
y
 d
o
g
 a
t 
th
e 
to
p 
of
 t
he
 p
ar
k 
a
s
 m
o
s
t

d
o
g
 o
w
n
e
r
s
 d
o,
 w
h
e
n
 I 
g
o
 n
ea
r 
th
e 
ca
fe
 I 
d
o
 p
ut

 m
y
 d
o
g
 o
n
 a
 I
ea
d,
 t
ha
t 
is
 m
y
 c
ho
ic
e,
 I
'm
 n
ot

a
w
a
r
e
 o
f 
a
n
y
 b
y
e
 l
aw
 r
eq
ui
ri
ng
 m
e
 t
o 
d
o
 s
o.

Th
is
 (s

n'
t 
th
e 
pl
ac
e 
fo

r 
pe

rs
on

al
 i
ns
ul
ts
 a
n
d
 p
ol
it
ic
al
 p
oi
nt
 s
co

ri
ng

. 
{'
ve
 m
u
t
e
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
nv
ol
ve
d

un
ti
l 
th
ey
'v
e 
co
ol
ed
 d
o
w
n
.

49



50



 

 

 

Witness Statement – Cllr Neil Parkin 

 

I will be at the hearing for the defence. Mr Patmore trolled me over four years  ago, I 

blocked him. Eventually I had to give up Facebook because other people could see 

his comments, while I could not. I had him removed from some sites and last week 

had him removed for the second time from Southwick together group. 

 

Neil 

  

51

tcourt_3
Text Box
APPENDIX 4




 

 

 

Witness Statement – Cllr Carol Albury 

 

 

 

Councillor Evans is an extremely professional and experienced member of Adur 
District Council, she not only is a District Councillor but is also the Executive member 
for the Environment....  
Emma’s  guidance to issues that appear or are asked of her on Facebook is both 
reliable and sensible and it is very easy to see how many members of the public 
appreciate this and hold Emma in very high  asteem.  If a question cannot be 
answered by her, Emma is the first to point them in the right direction as to which 
officer / department can deal with their problem..... 
The case in question was handled as Emma always does with authority , an 
explanation of the existing legislation ( for dog restrictions )within Adur was given, 
the great majority of Buckingham Park dog walking  fraternity knowing that their dogs 
as long as under control, can be  excercised  off the lead..  
Thereafter ,followed a long dialogue with Parish Councillor  Patmore  on Facebook 
targetting Emma With the fact this came under  her portfolio...inspite of the fact this 
incident was the responsability of the dog owner..  
Throughout this long thread on  Facebook comments were tossed back and forth 
with the end result of Councillor Patmore being called a Tosser...! 
I believe this to be a remark made to actually describe the way this whole thread had 
been conducted.... 
Oxford Dictionary ... 
 
One who tosses or throws something .....A person or thing that tosses something 
language , objects etc..... 
 

 

Councillor Carol Albury  

  

52



 

 

Witness Statement – Cllr Joss Loader 

 

The following is my witness statement to the events of June 10th, 2019, relating to 

the social media exchange between Cllrs Emma Evans (ADC) and Cllr Geoff 

Patmore (Lancing Parish Council). 

It also refers to various other social media exchanges between Cllrs Evans and 

Patmore, prior to this incident. These are purely to add context to the complaint. 

Firstly, I would confirm that I know both councillors in their professional capacities. I 

am on friendly terms with Cllr Evans within a council context but I have no other 

business or personal relationship with her. 

Similarly, I have no business or personal relationship with Cllr Patmore. 

I am an Independent councillor, sponsored by Shoreham Beach Residents’ 

Association. I have never been a member of any political party and this witness 

statement is not politically or personally motivated. 

 

THE COMPLAINT 

Background: 

Viewed in isolation, the Facebook post in question appears to be a breach of the 

Members’ Code of Conduct. It is clearly questionable to call somebody a “tosser” 

and normally I would not act as a witness in these circumstances. 

However, this allegation needs to be viewed in context. 

To my knowledge, Cllr Patmore has regularly questioned Cllr Evans’ abilities, work 

ethic and integrity on various social media sites in both Shoreham and 

Lancing/Sompting. 

As a result, many innocuous posts appear to be politicised. A good example would 

be my cross-party public defibrillator appeal, which I ran during my year as ADC 

Chairman. 

Cllr Patmore justifies his comments by saying he is holding Cllr Evans and other 

members of the Tory group to account.  

It has now reached the point whereby some councillors have blocked Cllr Patmore 

and others refuse to comment. 

It is important to stress I have no issue with councillors being held to account – 

indeed it is part of the democratic process.  However, Cllr Patmore can raise 

concerns with Executive members via email, at the JOSC or at full council. There is 

no guarantee they will be seen on FB. 

In the end, Cllr Patmore’s frequent posts reached a point whereby he left the NSBS 

group. 

53



 

 

Cllr Evans remains a member and continues to answer residents’ questions as and 

when requested. 

The post of June 10, 2019 

Cllr Evans was already addressing the points raised on FB by the wife of a man who 

had been bitten by a dog in Buckingham Park when Cllr Patmore posted. 

She was explaining the existing legislation relating to dog restrictions within Adur, 

clearly and concisely and in a timely way. 

As a former district councillor and serving parish councillor, I would have anticipated 

that Cllr Patmore would have a working knowledge of the law. 

However, he swiftly posted, asking Cllr Evans to explain why ADC were failing to 

enforce the legal requirement for dogs to be on leads. 

Many people know that dogs can be exercised off their leads in Buckingham Park, 

providing they are under control. 

I do not believe that any council in the land would have adequate resources to patrol 

every park and open space to ensure that dogs are under control and not likely to 

bite.   

The responsibility in this case was fairly and squarely with the dog owner.  The 

inference that ADC, and by virtue of her portfolio Cllr Evans, were in some way 

responsible was in my opinion unfair. 

As a parish councillor, Cllr Patmore is also expected to adhere to the spirit of a Code 

of Conduct.  He is obliged to show Cllr Evans respect. 

While Cllr Evans’ post may be viewed as less than respectful it resulted from lengthy 

exchanges and her comments on June 10th were not made in isolation. 

 

Witness statement dated January 7th, 2020. 

 

 

54


	Agenda
	3 Procedure for the meeting
	4 Allegation of a Breach of the Code of Conduct by Councillor Emma Evans
	Item 4 - Alleged Breach of the Code of Conduct by Cllr Evans
	Appendix 1 to JGC Report - ADC Code of Conduct For Members
	Appendix 2 to JGC Report - ADC Standards Procedure Rules
	Appendix 3 to JGC Report - Investigator's Report
	Appendix 4 to JGC Report 
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


